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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

“Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their report for the year ended 31 December 2021. .

Principal actrvrty
The principal activity of the company is the design, manufacture installation and service of business systems for
life safety within the fire sector.- ;

Review of the business and future developments
The profit for the financial year, after taxation, is £177,275,000 (2020 £22,662,000).

The company has had a good year as it continued with the expansion of its products business due to increased-
marketing activities in previous years. This has resulted in an increase in revenue from sale of goods by over £6.
million when compared with prior year. The company continues to maximise its operating profits, where feasible,
with cost saving initiatives which mcludes rationalising its headcount which has reduced from 209 employees in,
2020 to 171 employees in 2021.

The increase in profit was driven by the net gain on sale of the Intellectual Property (“IP" hereafter) to a fellow
group undertaking - Honeywell Products & Solutions Sarl, on 22 December 2021. As part of an inter-group
restructuring plan, it has been decided by the Honeywell group companies to transfer some of the IP rights

*  amongst the group entities, thus reducing the manufacturing footprint and: consolidating production plants. Based

. on this initiative, the production line of Novar Systems Limited was outsourced to Honeywell Safety Romania
from 2022 with production activities in the UK having completely ceased in April 2022. The company's IP transfer
resulted in a gain of £199,515,000 offset by the associated tax charge of £37,908,000. These balances are
respectively recognised as gain on sale of intangible assets and tax on profit. ’

The company's net assets increased significantly following the IP sales resulting in a higher cash balance at year
end as compared to prior year. In addition, there has also been favorable actuarial movement in respect of the
company's pension plan.-The increase in the actuarial gains on pension assets exceeding the actuarial losses on
the liabilities is leading to a net gain of £55,158,000 (2020: £32,275,000) being ‘recognised in other
comprehensive income.

The directors intend that the company will continue the distribution, installation and servicing activities of the
~business systems for life safety within the fire sector. In 2022, the company’s manufacturing, assembly and
shipping activities were outsourced to fellow entity in Honeywell Romania. The lease term for the company's
facility in Leicester ended in November 2021 and a new lease was signed with commencement date of July 2021 °
to ensure continuance of the business activities. :

The EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement (Brexit deal) was signed on 30 December 2020 and is effective
from midnight 1 January 2021. The company has a significant level of interaction with the European Union in both
its supply chain and sales channels. The Brexit deal caused a delay in product and materials shipments over the
first quarter of 2021 due to bottlenecks at border control resulting from additional clearance requirements. There
is also expected to be some divergence in regulations between European Union and the United Kingdom and
Honeywell as a group has taken steps to ensure compliance with new regulations stemming from the Brexit deal.
In the longer term the Brexit deal may result in an increase in logistic and product costs due to the longer
shipment process, product inspection and certification costs. Honeywell has implemented a number of mitigating
actions which include the use of a shared warehouse in Germany to service customers in the EU. The effects of
. the Brexit deal are being monitored as detailed in the risk management and principal risks and uncertainties :
paragraphs included in this.report.

The company is in a net asset position 4and expecfs to remain so for the foreseeable future.
The company's key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows:

Financial KPIs : Unit 2021 . 2020
Change in turnover compared with prevrous year % 7.3 (2.7)
Gross profit margin . % 454 46.5
Operating profit margin ' : % 28.7 29.6
Change in headcount compared with previous year % (18.1) (8.9)
Turnover '
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Novar Systems Limited
" Registration number: 00264047

. Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

. As noted, the company has experienced good growth in turnover from the sale of goods resulting in an overall
year on’year increase of 7.3%. This is mainly attributed to increase in sales to customers where installation
projects have completed in prior year. The company continues to actively market its offerings to further increase
its customer base as well as increase the products and services available to the market.

Gross profit margin S . ' ' . ,

The gross profit margin has remained relatively constant with prior year with the decrease being attributable to
the change in the mix between product sales, projects, and service revenue. The company contlnues to'focus on
maintaining margins through stringent cost controls and manufacturing efficiencies.

Operating profit margin

The operating profit is in line with prior years. Although there has been significant increase in R&D and freight
costs, this has been offset by a decrease in overall expenditures following cost mitigating measures taken in
2020. including restructuring and reductlon in headcount as detailed below.

Headcount

The average headcount decreased by 18.1% (2020 8.9%) from 209 employees in 2020 to 171 employees in
2021 due to ongoing restructuring across all divisions, as further roles became redundant during the year to
reduce costs and malntaln profitability. ' .
Strategy )
The company is part of Honeywell group’s Building Technologies (HBT) busmess The company generates
sustainable growth by developing a broad range of innovative, value-added fire detection and alarm systems
which are mostly brought to the market through a network of trained and supported distributors. The company
aims to be the supplier of choice for life and property protection equipment and installations.

Across all its segments, the company's strategy is to build a unique position by offenng its customers a software
driven and connected solution. In the BT segment, the Business Group strategy is to build a unique position by
offering customers a software-driven and connected solution. The starting point is listening carefully to customers
to develop products and services that meet their specific needs. The solutions are then designed to operate
seamlessly as part of an integrated management system. The Business Group aims to build a smarter, safer, and
more sustainable world by helping customers to control their comfort, security, and energy use. .

*

Financial risk management, objectives and policies

Interest rate risks

The company is exposed to interest rate-risk arising out of amounts owed to/from group undertakings
respectively. The exposures to interest rate risks have not been hedged as there is no net interest rate risk at
group level on account of intra group loan balances.

Foreign currency risks

The impact of COVID-19 has resulted in increased volatlllty in foreign exchange rates thus exposing the company
to increased foreign currency risks. This has been compounded by the:effect of the Brexit deal on British Pound
Sterling. . .

The company ‘monitors and manages the foreign currency risk relating to the operations of the company, with the
assistance of the treasury department of Honeywell International Inc.

L/qu1dlty risks

‘The company ensures avallablllty of funding for its operatnons through an appropriate amount of committed bank
facilities on a group wide basis.
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (cohtinued)

Credit risks )
Credit risk arises from exposures to customers. The creditworthiness of customers granted credit terms in the
normal course of business is monitored continually.

The terms and conditions of credit sales are designed to mitigate or eliminate concentrations of credit risk with
any single customer. Sales are not materially dependent on a single customer or a small group of customers.

In respect of intercompany receivables, the company does not have exposure to credit risk considering that we

are receiving a guarantee letter from Honeywell International Inc. to support intercompany balances.

Pnnmpal risks and uncertainties ’
As a trading company, the company is dependent on its contlnued ablhty to secure contracts wrth customers and

_its ability to perform under those contracts.

In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus (“90VID-19") was identified in Asia. Over the next several
months, COVID-19 quickly spread across the world. In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared
COVID-19 a worldwide pandemic. The outbreak of the COVID-19 has resulted in governments worldwide
enacting emergency measures to combat the spread of the virus. These measures, which include the
implementation of travel bans, self-imposed quarantine periods and social distancing, have caused material
disruption to businesses globally resulting in an economic slowdown which could negatively impact the
company’s operations‘and adversely affect its business. As of December 31, 2021, the virus continues to spread
and many countries are experiencing a resurgence in infection rates. Although vaccines have recently been
made available, the availability and distribution of the vaccines continues to provide chailenges. We remain
cautious as many factors remain unpredictable, including the increasing rate of COVID-19 infections. We
continue to monitor COVID-19 infection rates and acknowledge the risk of new surges in COVID-18 infections.

The gtobal spread of COVID-19 creates significant volatility, uncertainty and economic disruption, which impacts

“our business, operations and financial results and :may continue to do so. Honeywell's capabilities adapted

Ry

towards addressing the COVID-19 challenges of our customers around the world. The enduring impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on business, operations and financial results will depend on numerous evolving factors that
we may not be able to accurately predict, including: the duration, scope and severity of the pandemic; as well as
the timing and availability of effective medical treatments and vaccines; governmental, business and individual
decisions and actions; the impact of the pandemic on economic activity; and the extent to which we or our
business partners may be prevented from conducting normal business activities due to shutdowns or other
restrictive measures that may be requested or mandated by governmental authorities.

These factors could, among other things, disrupt the purchasing and payment behaviours of our customers and
their end-users; our operations, |ncludmg our manufacturing activities, the shipment of our products, and the
performance of our suppliers and service prov:ders and our liquidity and cash flow.

The following risks will be applicable to the companies dealing in Honeywell building technologles business as a .

" whole.
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

‘Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

« Customer risk: Existing and potential customers and their end-users may choose to reduce or delay spending,

.cancel contracts, or cut costs in a manner that reduces demand for our products and services. Customers

" may also attempt to renegotiate contracts and obtain concessions, face financial constraints on their ability to

make payments to us on a timely basis or at all, or discontinue their business operations, and we may be

required to discount the pricing of our products, all of which may materially and negatively impact our

operating results, financial condition and prospects. In addition, unfavourable customer site conditions, such

as closure of or access restrictions to customer facilities, and disruptions to our customers’ third-party

logistics, warehousing, inventory management and distribution services may limit our ability to sell products
and provide services, meet billing milestones or provide services.

- Operations risk: The closure of our facilities, restrictions inhibiting our employees’ ability to access those
facilities, and disruptions to the ability of our suppllers or service providers to deliver goods or services to us
(including as a result of supplier facility closures or access restrictions, disruptions to their supply chains, and
supplier liquidity or bankruptcy risk) could disrupt our ability to provide our services and solutions and result

. in, among other things, terminations of customer contracts and losses of revenue. Because the COVID-19

. pandemic could adversely affect our near-term and long-term revenues, earnings, liquidity and cash flows, we
have taken and may be required to continue taking significant cost actions, including but not limited to
reducing discretionary expenses (such as non-essential travel, contractors, and consultants), reducing hiring,
cancelling annual merit increases; reducing executive and board of directors pay, reducing work schedules
across the enterprise, shortening or staggering work schedules to match production with demand, and
reducing staffing levels, as well as increasing supplier-based productivity and enhancing spending-limit
controls. Remote work and increased frequency of cybersecurity attacks, including phishing and malware
attempts that utilise COVID-19-related strategies, increase the risk of a material cybersecurity incident that
could result in the loss of proprietary or personal data, render us more vulnerable to future cybersecurity
attacks, disrupt our operations, or otherwise cause us reputational or financial harm.

The company sells fire safety products and also installs and services fire safety solutions for entutles outSIde the
Honeywell group. As a result, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the company is expected to be
consistent with the impact on the Honeywell's building technology segment as described above. The company
has also been implementing the cost cutting measures disclosed above.

The COVID-19 pandemic continues to impact our business operations, and our customers and suppllers _ability
to operate at normal levels. Disruptions in normal operating levels continue to create supply chain disruptions and
inflationary cost pressures within our end-markets. We anticipate supply chain constraints, and the-inflationary
environment will continue during 2022. As such, we implemented short-term and long-term strategies to reduce
the impact of current and future effects. During the first quarter of 2022, governments around the world removed
- many restrictions on businesses and the general public. We continue to operate our manufacturing sites at
normal production levels. As of May 31, 2022, we have returned 100% of our non-manufacturing employees to
the workplace on a flexible schedule (3 days working from office ~ 2 days working from home). We continue to
actively monitor regional COVID-19 outbreaks, and the related government restrictions and lockdown activities in
the areas we operate. To date, the impacts of these actions have not been material.

On 23 June 2016, the UK held a referendum on the UK’s continuing membership of the EU, the outcome of
which was a decision for the UK to leave the EU (Brexit). The UK left the EU on 31 January 2020 and was in a
transition period until 31 -December 2020. The EU-UK Trade and Cooperation Agreement (Brexit deal) was
signed on 30 December 2020 and is effective from 1 January 2021. The deal imposes additional rules and
regulations to govern the transfer of goods and services between the United Kingdom and European Union. This
may lead in future years to an increase in costs and administrative requirements and procedures of trading with
the European Union. The implementation of the deal is also expected to impact macroeconomic factors such as
exchange rates. A working group has been established by Honeywell International Inc. to monitor the trade deal
- and regulation and implement.mitigating actions to respond to any changes.

The company has a significant degree of interactions with the European Union through its- supply chain and sales

distribution channels. it will be impacted through additional costs and complexities of transferring products and
" services between the United Kingdom and the European Union. The company has implemented actions to -

mitigate the impact of Brexit and continues to monitor the Brexit regulations and will adapt the mitigating actions
- as needed. In addition, the company may be affected by macroeconomic factors, such as exchange rate and

interest rate ﬂuctuatlons that are mﬂuenced by the deal and affect the enwronment in which the company
operates. .
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory dutles in accordance with s172(1) of
Companies Act 2006

Set out below is the company’s report as required under the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting) Regulations
2018 (the “Regulations”). The Regulations require Novar Systems Limited (the “company”) to report how the
_ Directors of the company (the “Board”) have considered their duties under section 172 (“Section 172") of the
Companies Act 2006 (the “Act”), to promote the success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholder whilst
having due regard to the company’s stakeholders. The principal activity of the company is the design,
manufacture, installation and service of business systems for life safety within the fire sector. :

The company is part of the Honeywell group of companies (the “Honeywell Group”) and is ultimately owned by
Honeywell International Inc. The duty’under Section 172 is owed by the Directors to the company. In-the context
of a group of companies, the company’s Directors owe their primary duty to the company and not Honeywell
International-Inc (though Honeywell International Inc is considered a relevant factor under the Section 172 duty).

The Board recognises the need to have appropriate levels of corporate governance as part of its approach to risk -
mitigation and wider stakeholder engagement strategy, and that the overall framework that Section 172 promotes
is to drive the long-term success and sustained economic viability of the company for the benef t of its sole
shareholder and other key stakeholders.

The Directors are mindful of corporate governance and seek to demonstrate understanding of their accountability
and statutory responsibilities, including application of their Section 172 duties under the Act. Honeywell Group’s
legal function provides regular corporate governance. updates to the Board on new and amended legislation,
including the steps taken to ensure compliance. The Directors always consider whether the decisions to be taken
are in the best interest of the company, whilst also considering the impact'on the company's wider stakeholder
base. .

For details of the issues, factors and stakeholders the Directors consider relevant in complying with Section 172
of the Act, and the main methods the Directors have used to engage with stakeholders and understand the
issues to which they must have regard, refer to the "Engagement with suppliers, customers and other
relationships" and "Engagement with employees statements on pages 9 and 12 respectively.

Purpose

The purpose of our company is allgned to the Honeywell Group strategy for the business unit and all values are
aligned in accordance with the context of the ultimate parent company, Honeywell International Inc. The company
designs, manufactures, installs and services. business systems for life safety wuthln the fire detection equipment -
and emergency lighting. .

The Board is responsible for promoting the purpose of the company and ensuring that its values, strategy and
culture complement this purpose and are strategically aligned with the wider Honeywell business unit. Our
purpose is at the heart of everything that we do, it inspires our employees and guides our day-to-day operations,
our culture and decision making by the Board.

’ '
The Board discusses its strategic direction based on the values and culture promoted. by the overall parent and
considers the policies provided for the Honeywell Group to shape its operational activities.

We align our values with the Honeywell Group's clearly defined core values, which encompass inclusion and
diversity, -sustainability, integrity and compliance and communities: By incorporating these values, the company
creates an environment where individuals and teams grow together whiist recognising a culture that balances
“accountability and results with a high value on its people. The company's commitment to integrity, ethics,

supporting diversity and workplace respect underlie the Directors’ duties to promote the success of the company’
" as a whole whilst encouraging such behaviours enabllng a “performance culture” that the Honeywell Group seeks
to achieve throughout.

Our culture is determined by the values set out above which defines the expectations, attitudes and behaviors
expected by the company’s Directors and its employees, in its activities and relationships with colleagues,
" shareholders and wider stakeholders. In doing so, this ensures that the busmess maintains a reputation for high
standards of business conduct and stakeholder engagement.
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Novar Systerns Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (Continued)

Our culture and values are further reinforced by training and development of the Board and employees. The
- company and its Directors are able to apply the core values, which produce a continuously high standard of
business ethics, when considering the statutory requirements of Sectlon 172 in pursmt of promotlng the Iong-term
success of the company.

In making its decisions, including strategic decisions that impact our stakeholders a key prmcrple applied by the
Directors is to always consider whether the decision they are about to take leads to a positive long-term increase
in shareholder value whilst balancing the interests of, and long term impacts on, stakeholders of the company.
The Directors and senior management are provided with clear guidance and appropriate corporate governance
protocols to support the decision making process, at the heart of which is the necessity to promote the
sustainable, long-term success of the company. whilst having suff cient regard for stakeholders.
N
Decision making process -

Decision making within the. company is undertaken by the Board with supportlng information from subject matter
experts at executive level in the business, including various Honeywell group functions such as Tax, Treasury
. and Legal. Decision making is guided by the strategic direction of the global business and the business umtp

The Board has a robust set of reserved matters relevant and appropriate to its purpose and function, with
appropriate thresholds, to ensure .applicable approvals are obtained before certain actions/business decisions
can be taken. Certain-matters are delegated to senior management with appropriate levels of authority and
~ escalation. These matters are strictly reserved to ensure the directors of the Board can demonstrate.sound and

competent execution of their statutory duties (including oversight of the management of relationships and
engagement with stakeholders on their-behalf) in accordance with the Act and the Regulations and are driven by
the need to promote the success of the company. A key principle underlying these delegations in the company is
that the flow of delegation originates from the Board to senior management.

During 2020 as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic the company experienced the need for a reduction in
workforce due to budgeting constraints. As a result the Directors ensured that appropriate risk mitigation steps
were taken and strong engagement with employees occurred. The Directors, in making their decisions
surrounding the reduction, considered the values and protocols set by the Honeywell group.

As detailed in the "Training" section. below, training has been undertaken by the Directors to understand the
requirements of the Regulations and the process for approving principal decisions. This training also informed the
- directors of future regulatory developments which the Board will continue to monitor through the overarching
corporate governance across the UK.

Board meetings are scheduled on an adhoc basis and occur at'least once a year. The Board processes that .
support the application of our corporate governance and decision-making more widely, and Section 172 more

specifically, require board paper preparers to ensure sufficient and relevant information is provided to the Board,

senior management and Honeywell International Inc. Board meetings and minutes demonstrate the relevant

aspects of Section 172 are considered and appropriately addressed. The corporate governance process provides

‘the company with a framework to ensure everyone involved in and contributing to the decision-making process

understands the duties which the directors are obligated to consider in. the decision-making process and

applicable regulations, to be able to provide relevant information and therefore lead to effective decision making.

" To further support effective decision-making, the Board takes into account various group-wide governance
" policies and practices, including the Delegations of Authority, Code of Ethics, Anti-Bribery and Corruption Policy,
Environmental Policy, Security Policy (the “Honeywell Policies”),” when maklng decisions on behalf of the
company, together with established practices.
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

/

Strategic Rgport for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

- Board composition

The .company has three Durectors as further described on page 15 of the Directors’ Report. The current
_ Directors, in addition to their role as statutory Directors of the company, also occupy.key positions within the

wider organisation and ensure ongoing oversight of various segments of the business. For example, S.M. Morley
has previously worked as a Technical Services Manager UKI, Commercial Projects Manager, Program Manager
. and Honeywell Fire Global Technical Support Leader. He has extensive experience in many areas of the
company. S.M. Morley is also the site leader for the Leicester base, bringing oversight of the operational levels of -
the company into consideration for the Board. D. Juggins previously worked as the District Finance Leader for
Midlands and South West. D.A. Kay has been the Finance Director for the HBT Europe Projects Business since
2004. As a qualified lawyer and accountant, D. Juggins brings broad and advantageous knowledge to the Board
from both a legal and financial perspective.

The composition of the Board provides a level of seniority, extensive business and industry experience and
in-depth understanding of the company’s and the wider organization's affairs to enable the Directors to meet the
needs of the business and for the Directors to each carry out their-role and statutory duties to a high standard.
The Board's collective  experience enables them to identify and consnder a broad range of stakeholders in their
deliberations and decision-making. :

There were no changes to the board composition. '

Training

New Directors are subject to a formal induction process and the current Directors have an opportunity to receive
training relevant to their role -on the Board and the wider organization. To support the Directors in their roles and
enable them to discharge their responsibilities as statutory directors, the induction and ongoing training contains
‘materials and training sessions on Section 172 duties and wider responsibilities of the Directors..

in 2021, and annually going forward, Directors of the company will attend bespoke training sessions from an
external facilitator to ensure they are continually up to date with relevant legislation in order to actively
demonstrate compliance and application of their statutory duties. Director training will consist of presentations,
breakout sessions and case study analysis. New Directors will ‘be provided with induction packs detailing the
course content to ensure that they are up to date as soon as they take on a Honeywell directorship.

Principal dec:s:ons

Being a part of a large multinational group of companies, the company adheres to the compliance policies and

procedures which are set out by its parent company alongside those of the wider group. During the year, all key

strategic decisions made by the company have been made-with due consideration of the business unit and wider
" Honeywell Group strategy.

- The Board has the necessary skills and experience required to identify the impacts of their decisions on the
company's stakeholders, and where relevant, the likely consequences of the decisions in the long-term. The
Directors are supported by information provided by Honeywell Group functions, such as Tax, Treasury and Legal
- who support and consult when necessary. Responsibility for making principal decisions is reserved for the .
company'’s Board and can include the following decisions: (i) those linked to matters of strategic importance; (i) .
commercually material matters of financial or operatlonal importance; and (m) those that |mpact key stakeholders.
Examples of principal decisions can include:

« dividends;

= changes to key investments owned by the company;

« substantial reorganisation projects;.

« business contracts above certain value; :

« changes to the company’s strategic objectives, in line W|th wider business unit priorities;
* substantial changes to the Honeywell brand; and

+ matters that will substantially affect the cor‘npany's employees.

In maklng its decisions, the Board is required to consider the outcome of any stakeholder impact assessment that
has been undertaken to support it making that principal decision.
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

In line with the Regulations and FRC guidance, and in accordance with the approach taken during the ﬁnancial
year under review, having considered the company's principal risks and uncertainties as detailed in the Strategic.
. Report, the company made the following principal decisions dunng the year ended 31 December 2021:

- approval of re-appointment of auditors;
« approval of Slavery and Human Trafﬁcklng Statement 2021

-Covid-19 related decisions

The Honeywell Group undertook a formal analy3|s “Going Concern and Impact of Covid 19", of the impact of
Covid 19 on global and local economies and the effect on Honeywell's UK holding and financial companies, as
well as Honeywell International Inc. The report contained an analysis of the impacts of the global pandemic on
areas such as employee health, safety, economic wellness, Honeywell's commitment.to public health, plant
productivity and safety, customers and suppliers, liquidity resources and prudent cost control measures.

During 2020, the Covid-19 pandemic meant that the Board had to take decisions to rearrange the ways of
operating the business with many employees having to work from home. Decisions on this matter were taken .
with the highest regard to the well-being and safety of employees whilst maintaining the highest operational
standards of compliance as set by Honeywell International Inc.

Engagement with suppllers customers and other relattonshlps

The Board recognises the importance of considering. and having regard to key stakeholders and their interests
when making decisions. By thoroughly understanding the company's key stakeholder groups, the Board can
successfully factor in and address the needs of these stakeholders and foster good business relationships with
them. The company considers its employees, suppliers, customers, the community and environment, our-
shareholder and regulators to be our key stakeholders. We aim to build and maintain lasting relationships with its
key stakeholders in the countries where it operates. The company engages with its key stakeholders and
considers their differing needs and priorities as an everyday part of its business and uses the input and feedback
to inform its decision- maklng .

The Board delegates stakeholder engagement to the senior management and considers the stakeholders that
are impacted by the company and its business activities, including |ts employees, suppliers, customers, the local
community and the shareholder. . '

The company’s Board.operates within the Honeywell Group's vision which recognises the importance of clear
and effective communication as well as proactive engagement with stakeholders. By enabling a range of
engagement channels, informed decision-making is achieved and supports the long-term success of the
.company. ' ; . : ' .

Regularly engaging with the key stakeholders is a priority for the company and the following information
describes how the Directors had regard to the need to foster relationships with the company's key stakeholders,
how outcomes were considered and how concerns were identified and addressed during the reporting period. .
Further detail of these decisions, and in particular the Principal Decisions in relatlon to the stakeholders, are’
discussed in the s1 72 Statement on page 6: .
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Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047 -

-

Customers

« To- provide the company's ¢« The company maintsins a -+ The Board is provided with regular
customers with top quality number of group-wide policies reports on renewals of, and
services. 4 aimed at ensuring - ongoing negotiations for new, supplier

To demonstrate excellence in
service delivery on a global scale
and build trust between customers

and the Company.-

Ensuring safety of the products
and services provided to
customers.

Ensuring that any claims in
relation to quality of safety of
products or services are
addressed and resolved.

Ensuring,thét customer data is .

kept in a secure environment and
only for the duration and purposes
the data was collected for.

security of customer data, high
standards of safety and quality of

‘the products and services and
-continued confidence and trust of

our customers.

In the event of an escalated
issue, if appropriate, members of
the Board will seek to resolve
directly with customers.

Page 10

- consequences

agreements by-a dedicated supply
chain - team. The information
received supports effective
decision making by the Board and
considering long-term
. on  customers
well-being and satisfaction. The
sales group team’s active daily
engagement with customers is fed
back to the Board to be used when
decision making, providing insight

‘into demand and improve-customer

retention.”

By understanding our customers, it
has allowed us to clarify the
company's vision for future growth
and ways to continually add brand
value. ’



Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

kY

Suppliers

 To receive a clearly stated set of *« The company maintains a + On an exceptional basis, - the

" business

requirements to understand the
company's needs and
expectations.

To- receive regular support from
the company to improve suppliers’
management system
and effectively avoid any defects
and operational issues.

To be part of a fair and respéctful
tender and supplier ‘selection
process. .

To be part of an ongoing supplier
relationship based on mutual
respect and treating each other as
valued business partners.

number of group-wide policies to
ensure fair and respectful
treatment of its actual and
potential suppliers across the
organisation. The policies clearly
set out the company's
expectations in relation to the
quality of supplier products and
services delivered _and
requirements that need to be met
to ensure smooth and mutually
beneficial business relationship.

As part of the wider Honeywell
Group, the company's supplier
engagement is measured as part
of Honeywell's - global

" procurement organisation.

Further information can be found
on Honeywell International's «
supplier code of business;
www.honeywell.com/en-us/
company/integrity-and-
compliance.com.

Directors. will engage with suppliers

_through means of the .procurement

teams in the case of

any
escalation. '

‘Community and environment

To manufacture and deliver high

.quality products and ‘services in

an energy - efficient . and
environmentally responsible
manner. .

To conduct business in a manner
to minimise negative impact on

the surrounding area and be -

respectful and conscientious of
the environment,

To. take into account the interest
of the local
considering future investments
and bqsiness decisions. -

As aforementioned, the company
as part of the wider Honeywell
Group takes into consideration the

sustainability policy of Honeywell

International-Inc.

community when.

The company maintains a ;By following and implementing the

number of group-wide policies to
promote sustainable and
environmentally friendly business
and operational practices..

Engagement with employees has
resulted . in - the
understanding that there is an
increasing desire- for a more
environmentally friendly
workplace. .
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Board -

group wide sustainability policy, the
company has been, able to foster
the interests of the community and .
environment in which it operates in
Board decisions.

From listening to the views of
employees, the Board is moving
towards implementing electric car
charging points and. parking bays
during refurbishments of the
company'’s places of work.



Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Shareholder

« The company is- 100% owned by < Group Treésury, Tax and « The company's strategy .is. to-
Novar- Electrical Holdings Limited  Finance functions, in conjunction  pursue strategic growth to create
and the ultimate shareholder is - with the senior management, long-term value for its shareholder.’
Honeywell International Inc. :jnal;er rgi(‘:/?c;nm:ndatlonsd. :oA « The receipt of this information, and

eclare enas, coordinaté .o coordination " with Group

33,?@%8'2?3 itr:zac?mgtunltecg{ functfons, aids the Board .whenv
level , ; considering whether to declare
’ : . ) dividends, the amount of dividend
The company - reports to its andimpact at local level.
shareholder on a regular basis in ‘
the form of its financial
statements, monthly and
quarterly Board reports and
business reviews, presentations
to- the Board of the Group,
business plans and strategic
plans as well as risk reporting.

Dividends, which are categorised
as a principal decision, were
considered and however were not
subject for approval this fi nanmalv
period.

Regulator(s)

+ To receive regular feedback on + The company's Directors have

any consultations. i . delegated much responsibility for
engagement with the Regulators
to the ultimate parent Honeywell
International Inc.

- To have an open and honest
-relationship with the company
where Regulation and Guidance )
can be discussed. The company keeps the

- Regulators informed of any
significant changes to the

company.

Engagement with employees

The company identifies its employees as its key stakeholders and recognizes their importance to the Iong-term
success of the company. Throughout the year, the Directors, through their delegated authority to senior
management, HR functions and wider Honeywell Group functions, engaged with the company's employees in
various ways to provide information on matters of concern to them as employees, to take into account their views
in making decisions likely to affect their interests, to encourage involvement in the company's performance and to
achieve a common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and economic factors affectmg the
company's performance. .

The company engages with its employees 1o create an environment where its people can continue to Iearn and
establish their careers alongside adding value-to the attainment of the company’s initiatives. The company.
.promotes the use of specific lines of communication such as employee surveys business performance updates
and presentations, among other things. ' ’

This ongoing engagement with the company’s stakeholders aims to minimise levels of staff attrition, actively
invite employee engagement within the context of the current market, capltallse on knowledge share schemes
and promote and continue to develop a healthy work-life balance.

The table below sets out the details of how the company engaged wuth its employees and how the Directors have
regard to the employees’ interests and the impact of these considerations on the decisions taken by the Board
during the reporting period. . .

Page 12 .



Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Strategic Rep'lort for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued) ,

. Employees" interests

How we engage

Impact of engagément :

Providing information on matters of » The Dlrectors have delegated « The Directors strive .to promote

concern to them as employees and
to achieve an awareness of factors

affecting the pérformance of -the ’

‘company, .-such as quarterly
. results, strategy, sustainability,
training, bi-annual performance
related bonus scheme,. career

\be taken

development and dwersﬂy and
inclusion.

Being consulted on a regular basis
so that the views of employees can
into account in the
decisions made by the Directors
which are likely to affect their
interests.

"divisional

‘much of the. engagement to.

Group’'s employee engagement
mechanisms, including the Group
intranet, Group social media
channel, regular team and
one-to-one updates provided by
leaders and line
managers. :

The Group HR function, to whom
the Directors have delegated
training responsibility, ensure that
training and career development
sessions to employees are
provided. The company also
publishes annually the company's
Gender-Pay Gap Report, as well
as communications around how
and what improvements: the
company is trying to progress.

Employees are kept informed by
ad hoc updates ‘on key
developments,  changes to
strategic objectives and priorities,
update$ on progress of ongoing
projects, updates on Brexit
developments and its impact on
the business and workforce,

"updates and announcements in

respect of the Covid-19

pandemic.

The company's employees are
actively encouraged to participate
in company “townhalls”, where
open and honest discussions take
place and questions are permitted

.from all those in attendance. The

townhalls take place on either a
monthly and quarterly basis held
by leadership where the

opinions and raise any
outstanding issues. The results of

. the townhalls are reported back to
‘the Board for consideration and

analysis:
An employee forum is in" place

.allowing our Board to consult with
. employee representatlves on a

regular basis.

Page 13

"employees are able to voice their -

inclusivity and do not discriminate
between employees or potential
employees on grounds of race or
ethnic ~origin, disability, gender,
sexual orientation, age, religion or
belief.

The Directors are committed .to
valuing the diversity of ‘its people
and it moniters and reports
internally on aspects such as
gender and age equality. The
company and the group are
strongly dedicated to ensuring

_equal pay for all workforce across

the organization regardless of
gender, race or ethnic origin,
disability, gender, sexual
orientation, age, religion or belief
and regularly report on both group.
and legal entity level.

The results of the townhall are
submitted to the Board and
considered. The outcomes and any
workforce-related  issues  and
requests are. considered,
addressed and the employees
updated on the actions to be taken.

The presence  of the employee
forum allows the Board to receive
input from employees at all levels °
of the company to be considered

when decision making. :



Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Principal decisions . .

Pnncmal decisions, within the context of Section 172, are made wnthln the context of the ultimate parent companyz~
Honeywell International Inc’s group strategy and in accordance with policies and procedures set by Honeywell
International Inc. These are set out in detail within the s172 statement on Page 8.

Approved by the Board on 20~Apr~2023. and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:

il by

..... SIEDFTZI0ERES -+ s eeeeee
David Kay .

Director
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

~

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their report and the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Business review and future developments
A review of the business of the company and future developments is |ncluded in.the strateglc report on page 2.

Results and dividends
The company's profit for the financial year, after taxation was £177,275,000 (2020: profit of £22,662,000) which
will be transferred to reserves. The results for the financial year are shown on page 23.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2020: £nil).

Financial risk management, objectlves and policies

The details of the financial risk management of the company are included in the strategic report on page 3.
Directors’ of the company

The directors, who held- offi ice during the year, and up to the date of signing these fi nanC|aI statements, were as
follows: .

David Kay . ‘ o : ' S -
David Juggins . R .
~_Stuart Morley ‘ . o . ' :

Directors’ indemnities

" Pursuant to the company's articles of assocnatlon the dlrectors were throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2021 and are at the date of thrs report entltled to a qualifying indemnity provision as defined in section
234 of the Companies Act 2006. -

Research and development
Research and development expenditure for the financial year related mostly to an allocatlon of global costs for
“the development of new software and hardware products and amounted to £3 135,000 (2020 £612,000).

Engagement with suppliers, customers and other relationships
We recognise the importance of clear communication and proactive engagement with our stakeholders Detalls of
engagement with stakeholders undertaken during the year appears as part of our Section 172 statement on page :

Going concern ' o \
The company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position,
are set out in the strategic report.

The ultimate parent company, Honeywell International Inc. has indicated that it will provide financial support to

the company for at least one year from. the date of signing these financial statements. While considering the

ability of the ultimate parent company to provide financial support, the directors have reviewed the 2022 financial

performance of Honeywell International Inc. as well as representations and initiatives of Honeywell Executive

Leadership. As part of their consideration, the directors have acknowledged the cost control measures already
taken across Honeywell International Inc., the group’s cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments

balance at 31 December 2022 of $10.1-billion.

The directors have a reasonable expectatlon that the company has adequate-resources, including support from
Honeywell International Inc. to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future being a perlod of at
least 12 months from the date of signing these financial statements.

The ongoing military conflict in Ukraine and the related sanctions targeted against the Russian Federation may
have an impact on the European and global economy. The entity does not have any significant direct exposure to
Ukraine, Russia or Belarus. At the date of these financial statements, the Company continues to meet its -
obhgatrons as they fall due and therefore continues to apply the going concern basis of preparation. ’ N

Based on the circumstances described above, the financial statements are prepared on the assumptlon that the
entity is a goung concern. :

Page 15 '



Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 cheniber 2021 (continued)

Environmental repori

Emissions and energy consumption

Statement of carbon emissions in compliance with Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reportlng (SECR) covering
energy use and associated greenhouse gas emissions relating to gas, electricity and transport, intensity ratios
and information relating to energy efficiency actions.

Summary of greenhouse gas emissions and energy consumption for the year ended 31 December 2021:

2021 2021 - 2020 2020
: . Tons CO2e . KWh Tons CO2e Kwh

Natural gas Scope 1 ’ 103 559,811 58 - 315,052

Fleet - Scope 1 48 189,202 : 50 196,682 -

Purchased electricity Scope 2 53 248,769 109 465,630
Business travel & personal mileage Scope 3 10 38522 = = M . 42,085
- Gross emissions & energy ‘ 214 1,036,304 - 227 1,019,449
Turnover (£000) A Tons CO2e/ Turnover (£000)
2021: 83,454 ‘ 0.0026

2020: 77,757 ’ ’ ) : ___0.0029

Energy actions taken

Honeywell has a commitment to making our business operations more environmentally friendly and sustainable.
Our internal efforts have improved our Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas intensity by more than 80% since
2004. And we are committed to achieving more. In 2019, Honeywell set a new five-year “10-10-10" target to
reduce global Scope 1 and Scope 2 greenhouse gas emissions by an additional 10% ‘per dollar of sales from
2018 levels, to deploy at least 10 renewable energy opportunities, and to achieve certification to 1ISO’'s 50001
Energy Management Standard at 10 facilities, all by 2024. Environmental responsibility is important to our
long-term growth. Being a steward of the environment ensures economic sustainability for our shareholders and
employees, and it enables continued development of products to meet the demands of an expanding global
economy. .

We have implemented the following actions to reduce/offset our emissions and energy consumption:

* Global energy program allowing any site to avail funding for energy reduction projects;

* Implementing lighting and control systems upgrade  projects, compressed air and cooling -plant upgrade
projects in the UK;

«  Newsletter communications on Honeywell Sustalnablllty that includes best practice sharing. These
communications provide awareness and knowledge sharing of energy savings across UK; and

* Purchasing electricity with REC's in many UK sites.

Methodo/ogies used to calculate emissions

GHG Protocol: The corporate standard used in conjunction with DEFRA conversion factors was used Actual
consumption of electricity and fuels where available used for the calculations.

Intensity ratios calculated using revenue.
* Tons CO2e/ Turnover (£000)
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

Data estimation:

« Estimation of sites energy consumption was done by CBECS factors for labs and off ices usmg the square
footage information,

+ Business travel calculations are based on spend data converted to Intres and assumed diesel as the fuel used;

+  Personal mileage calculatlons are based on spend data converted to km and assumed diesel as the fuel
used. : , .

Disclosure of information to the auditors
In the case of each of the persons whoi isa director at the time this report is approved conf‘ irms that:

+ so far as the directors are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's audttor is
unaware; and

- each director has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a dlrector in order to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the ‘company's auditor is aware of that
mformatlon

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provnsnons of s418 of the Companies
Act 2006.

Events since the balance sheet date

Following the sale of the Intellectual Property (“IP" hereafter) in December 2021, the company signed a lelted
Risk Distribution Agreement on 28 January 2022 with Honeywell Products & Solutions Sarl. Novar Systems now
acts as a Distributor for Honeywell Products & Solutions Sarl. The board of directors also decided to transfer
inventory ownership to the new IP owner. Thns transfer was completed on 29 April 2022.

Independent auditor

Deloitte LLP_have expressed their wnlhngness to be reappomted for another term and appropriate arrangements
"have been put in place for them to be deemed reappointed as auditor in the absence of an Annual General

Meetlng

Approved by the Board on 2¢-apr-2023. and signed on its behalf by:

DocuSigned by:

Jui by

3220P7230E3A435 ...............
David Kay N

Director
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" Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The d|rectors are *responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
. applicable law and regulations. R

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements. in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and appilcabie law), mciudlng FRS 101
'Reduced Disclosure Framework'. . .

“Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affalrs of the company and of the profit or Ioss of the company for that
period. . .

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:
 select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently; ,
« make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

» state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

- prepare the financial statements on the gaing concern basis unless it is mappropnate to presume that the
company will continue in business. .

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting.records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company
and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are.responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom ‘governing the preparatlon and
dlssemlnatlon of fi nanmal statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions. -

'
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Novar Systems:Limited
Registration number: 00264047

" Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Novar 'Systems Limited

'Report on the audit of the financial statements

N

Qualified opinion
In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the basis for qualified opinion section of
our report, the financial statements of Novar Systems Limited (the ‘company’):

+ give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit for the
year then ended;

* " have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
including Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006
We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

'+ profit and loss account; ‘

« statement of comprehensive income;

+ balance sheet; A

« statement of changes in equity; and

« the related notes 1 to 27.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United '
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework'
(United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). ’ . :

Basis for qualified opinion

At the time of the physical counting of mventones attendance was impracticable due to safety threats imposed
by the Covid-19 pandemic. We were unable to satisfy ourselves by using other audit procedures concerning the
inventory quantities held at 31 December 2021, which were included in the balance sheet at £2,375k.
Consequently we were unable to determine whether any adjustment to this amount was necessary.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are-further descnbed in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC's’) Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors use of the going concern basis of
accountlng in the preparation of the fi nanmal statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
. conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a
going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Qur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to gomg concern are descrlbed in the -
relevant sectlons of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the |nformat|on included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. -
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- Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Novar Systems lelted
(continued)

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify sich material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial
statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

" We have nothing to report in this regard.

- Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsubllmes statement, the directors are respon5|ble for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing.the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative-but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements '

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance.about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are. considered material if, individually or in.the aggregate, they could reasonably be

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. :

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures

in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities,

including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is
detailed below.

We considered the nature of the company’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the company's
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We
also enquired:of management and internal audit about their own identification and assessment of the risks of
irregularities. : ’

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the company operates in, and identified
the key.laws and regulations that:’

» had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
These included UK Companies Act 2006 and relevant tax legislation; and '

« do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with whlch may be fundamental to the
company ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. -

We discussed among the audit engagement team regarding the opportunities and |ncent|ves that may exist wnthln
_the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in.the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud or non-compliance with laws and
regulations in the following areas, and our specific procedures performed to address them are described below:

» due to the significant judgements in détermining the percentage of completion for revenue contracts, there is
a risk that revenue could be inaccurately recorded; we tested the design and implementation of relevant
controls and have tested a sample by reviewing the contract, agreeing cumulative costs incurred to date to
invoice and comparing the estimated costs to complete against invoices recelved post period end.
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Independent Audltor s Report to the Members of Novar Systems Limited
(contmued) :

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we-are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the
risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested
the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making
accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any sngnlf icant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

« reviewing financial statement, dlsclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance W|th
provisions of relevant laws and regulatlons described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of
material misstatement due to fraud; and

» enquiring of management and external legal counsel concermng actual and potentlal litigation and claims, and
instances of non-compliance with laws and regulatlons

.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors' Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financia!l statements; and:

L

. the Strategic Report and Directors' Report have been prepared |n accordance with appllcable legal
requirements.

Except for the possible. effects of the matter descnbed in the basis for qualified opinion section of our report, in
the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are reqmred to report by exceptlon
Arising solely from the limitation on the scope of our work relating to inventory, referred to above:

» we have not obtained all the information and explanations that we considered necessary for the purpose of
our audit; and ,

* we were unable to determme whether adequate accountmg records had been kept
" Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:
v returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

« - the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records arld returns; or

» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration speciﬁed by law are not made.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

. Use of our report .

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’'s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
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Novar Systems Limited
s Registratiory number: 00264047

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Novar Systems lelted
(contmued)

' DocuSlgned by: ' . ~/
[23254ZCE‘EWA#A ........... ‘
James Boyle CA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP Statutory Audltor
Edinburgh”

United Klngdom i

. Date:..ZQ.—ApmlOB

Page 22



~ Novar Systems Limited
- Registration number: 00264047

Profit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 Decerﬁber 2021

e ) )
‘2021 2020

Note £000 ~ £000-
Turnover L ' 4 83,454 77,757
Cost of sale's - : . ‘ ‘ ’ (45,538) - (41,578)
Grossprofit - - ' 37916 36,179
Distribution expenses ‘ B (4,425) ’ (5,015)
o . \
~ Administrative expenses . : ’ ‘ -(9,782) - (8,209)
Government grant income : 5 ' - 53
Operating profit S 23,709 23,008
Gain on sale of intangible assets ' . 6 199,515 -
Interest receivable and similar income . B T . 3,038 3,543
Interest payable and similar expenses : 12 ~(1,302) (1,274)
Profitbefore taxation 3 - . 224,960 25,277
Taxonprofit =~ : 13 (47,685) (2,615)
Profit for the financial year . o ‘ _ . 171215 22,662
. The above fésults were derived from continuing operations.
-

The notes on pages 27 to 55 form an integfal part of these financial statements.
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Statement of Comprehensive _Ihcome for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2021 12020 -

' » . Note £000 ‘ £000
" Profit for the year _ : - ' 177,275 22,662
:tems that cannot be reclassified subsequently to profit or . . ) ‘
:c:stzarié| gain or IosS on deﬂﬁed benefit pension schemes .22 \' " 55158 - T 32,275
Movement on deferred tax in relating to pension scheme 13 - ' . {18,728) (7,133).
A 36,430 25,142 -
Total comprehensive income for the year o - 213,705 47,804 .

2
" The notes on pages 27 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2021

Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Note

Fixed assets

Tangible assets - . 14,
Right-of-use assets ‘ 15
Current assets

Stocks ' _ 16
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year . 17
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: Amounts faIIing_ due within-one year N ' 18
Net current assets '

Total assets less current ‘Iiab.ilities

Credltors Amounts falllng due after more than one year 19
Provisions for Ilabllltles ' : o - 21,13
Net assets excluding pension asset

Net pension asset 22
Net assets

Capital and reserves .
Called-up share capital .23
Share premium . - 24

Retained earnings

‘Shareholders' funds

31 December -

31.December

o

2021 2020
£000 £000
1,285 85
4,226 400
5,511 485
2,375 1,198
97,498 94,416
264,664 42,597
364,537 138,211
(82,662) " (36,450)
281,875 101,761
287,386 102,246
(21,348) (16,868)
(54,046) (30,685)
211,992 54,693
217,387 160,934
429,379 215,627 .
27 . 27
12,990 2,990
426,362 212,610
429,379 215,627 |

The financial statements on. pages 23to 55 were approved by the Board of directors on 20-apr-2023. and sngned

on its behalf by: ' ' is

Docus_igned by:

Dol by o
et SN

David Kay
Director

The notes on pages 27 to 55 form an ihtegral part of these financial statements.
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Stateménf of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

- 7 .
Called-up' Share Retained

( share capital - premium earnings " Total

. ‘ £000 £000 _ £000 £000

At 1 January 2020 BN 27 - 2,990 164,766 167,783

_Profit for the year : o - - 22,662 22,662

Other comprehensive income ) - - 25,142 25,142,

Total comprehensive income ’ . - Co- ~ 47,804 47,804
Share based payment transactions (note : . : '

25) .. . . i .- .- 40 40

At 31 December 2020 o ' 27 2,990 . 212,610 215,627

Called-up ., Share . Retained

share capital premium earnings Total

. £000 £000 £000 £000

At 1 January 2021 . I » .27 : 2,990 ) 212,610 215,627

Profit for the year 1 : -- - 177,275 - 177,275

Other comprehensive income ‘ - - 36,430 36,430

Total comprehensive income ’ } - . - . 213,705 213,705

Share based payment transactions (note : o '
25) . T - - E 47 47
At 31 Pecember 2021 : ' 2 2,990 426,362 429,379
-

The notes on pages 27 to 55 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Notes to thé Financial Statamehts for thé Year Ehded 31 December 2021

1 General information

Novar Systems Limited is a private company limited by share capital, incorporated and domiciled in United
Kingdom under the Companies Act 2006 and registered in England and Wales. The nature of the company’s
operations and its principal activities are set out in the strategic report on page 2.

The address of its registered office is:
Honeywell House

Skimped Hill Lane

Bracknell

- Berkshire . s
RG12 1EB

United Kingdom

The immediate pafent undertaking is Novar Electrical Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in United
Kingdom. The registered address of the parent is Honeywell.House, Skimped Hill Lane, Bracknell,. Berkshire,
RG12 1EB, United Kingdom.

The company’s results are included in the consolldated financial statements of Honeywell International Inc a
company registered in the USA. Honeywell International Inc. is the company’s ultimate parent company and
controlling party, heading up the smallest and largest group to consolidate these financial statements. The
registered office of the ultimate parent company is located at 300 South Tryon Street, Charlotte, NC 28202, USA.
The financial statements of Honeywell International Inc: are publlcly available and can be obtained from the
internet at www.honeywell.com.

2 Accounting policies

Summary of signifi icant accounting policies and key accountmg estimates
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these fi nancial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100. ‘Application of Financial Reporting
Requirements’ issued by the FRC. Accordingly, these financial statements were prepared in accordance with
Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ and the Companies Act 2006. ’

In preparing these financial statements, the company applies the recognition, measurement and disclosure
requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards (“Adopted IFRSs"), but makes amendments where
necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101
disclosure exemptions has been taken.

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basus under the hlstoncal cost conventlon and in
accordance W|th the Companies Act 2006. :

The company's financial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
pounds (£000) except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of dlsdlosure exemptions
In these financial statements, as a qualifying entity, the company has taken advantage of the exemptions
available under FRS 101 in respect of the following disclosures:

 IFRS7- ‘Fmanmal mstruments. Disclosures’;

e Paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 - ‘Fair value meéasurement’ (dlsclosure of valuation technlques and inputs
used for falr value measurement of assets and liabilities);
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Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Notes to the Fmancnal Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

2.

Accountlng policies (continued)

The ‘requirements of the second sentence of paragraph 110 and paragraphs 113(a), 114, 115, 118, 119(a) to
(c), 120 to 127 and 129 of IFRS 15 - ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ (disaggregation of revenue,
significant changes in contract assets ‘and liabilities, details on transaction price allocation, timing of the
satisfaction of performance obligations and signiﬁcant judgements made in the application of IFRS 15);

‘The requirements of paragraph 52 of IFRS 16 - ‘Leases’, the second sentence of paragraph 89, and

paragraphs 90, 91 and 93 of IFRS 16 - ‘Leases’;

Paragraph 38 of IAS 1 - 'Presentatlon of financial statements' (comparative information requirements in
respect of):

- paragraph 79(a)(iv) of IAS 1 (reconciliation of number of shares at the beginning and end of the period)'

- paragraph 73(e) of IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and eqmpment (reconcnllatlons between the carrylng amount at
the beginning and end of the period),

- paragraph 118(e) of IAS 38, ‘Intangible assets’ (reconcmatlons between thé carrying amount at the
beginning and end of the period), and

and paragraph 17 of IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (key management compensation);

The following paragraphspf IAS 1 - 'Presentation of financial statements’ (removing the requirement -to
present): . )

- 10(d) (statement of cash flows),

- 10(f) (a statement of financial posrtlon as at the beginning of the preceding period when an entity applies an
accounting pollcy retrospectively or makes a retrospective restatement of items in its financial statements, or
when it reclassifies items in its financial statements and 16 (statement of compliance with all IFRS),

- 38A to 38D (requirement for minimum of two primary statements, including cash flow 'stateme'_nts and
additional comparative information), and

- 40A to 40D, 111 (statement of cash flows information) and 134-136 (capital management disclosures) of IAS
1; .

[
v

_|AS 7 - ‘Statement of cash flows’;

Paragraphs 30 and 31 of IAS 8 --'Aceounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors’
(requirement for the disclosure of information when an entity has not applied a new IFRS that has been
issued but is not yet effective);

The requirements .in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures to disclose related party transactions entered into
between two or more members of a group, provided that any subsidiary which is a party to the transaction is
wholly owned by such a member;

The requirements of paragraph 52 of IFRS 16 Leases; and

The requirements of paragraph 58 of IFRS t6 provided- that the disclosure of details of indebtedness required
by paragraph 61(1) of Schedule 1 to the Regulations is presented separately for lease liabilities and other
liabilities, and in total.

Going concern: :
The company's business activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and position,
are set out in the strategic report. .
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. Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

2 Accounting policies {continued)

The ultimate parent company, Honeywell International Inc. has indicated that it will provide financial support to

the company for at least one year from the date of sighing these financial statements. While considering the

ability of the ultimate parent company to provide financial support, the directors have reviewed the 2022 financial

performance of Honeywell International Inc. as well as representations and initiatives of Honeywell Executive

Leadership. As part of their consideration, the directors have acknowledged the cost control measures already

- taken across Honeywell International Inc., the groups cash, cash equnvalents and short-term investments
"balance at 31 December 2022 of $10.1 bnlllon .

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequ‘ate resources, including support from
Honeywell International Inc. to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future being a period of at
least 12 months from the date of signing these fi nancial statements.

The ongoing military conflict in Ukraine and the related sanctions targeted agamst the Russian Federatlon may
have an impact on the European and global economy. The entity does not have any significant direct exposure to
Ukraine, -Russia or Belarus. At the date of these financial statements, the Company continues to meet its
obligations as they fall due and therefore continues to apply the going concern basis of preparatlon

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Changes in accounting pollcy

New standards, interpretations and amendments that are efféctive for the current year
The following IFRS 'standards have been applied for the first time from 1 January 2021:

Amendments to IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, IAS .39 Financial _Instruments:: Recognition and
Measurement, IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures, IFRS 4 Insura’nce Contracts and IFRS 16
Leases — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (Phase 2)

The amendments in Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,IFRS |
4 and IFRS 16) introduce a practical expedient for modifications required by the reform clarify that hedge
accounting is not discontinued solely because of the IBOR reform, ard introduce disclosures that allow users to
understand the nature and extent of risks arising from the IBOR reform to which the entity is exposed to and how
the entity manages those risks as well as the entity’'s progress in transitioning from IBORs to alternative
" benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing this transition. These amendments had no impact on the
financial statements of the company, which will apply the guidance to impacted transactions during the transition
period. The company does not expect the adoptlon of this standard to have a material impact on the company’s
future financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 16 Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

On 28 May 2020, the IASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leases. The
amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessee may
elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee
that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19' related rent
concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not a lease
modifi catlon . . \

The amendment extends, by one year, the May 2020 amendment that provides lessees with an ‘exemption from
assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modlf cation. This amendment had no impact
on the financial statements of the company.

None -of the other standards, interpretations and amendments effective for the first time from 1 January 2021
have had a matenal effect on the financial statements.
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. Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Notes to the Flnanclal Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
(contmued)

2 Accounting poticiec (continued)

Turnover and revenue recognition

Recognition .
Turnover comprises revenue from sales to customers and service revenues net of value added tax.

The company recognises revenue when it satisfies an identified performance obligation by -transferring a
promised good or service to a customer excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The company
measures revenue at the transaction price, excluding estimates of variable considerations. A good or service is
. considered to be transferred when the customer obtains control. IFRS 15 states that “control of an asset refers to
the ability to direct the use of and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from the asset”. Control also
‘means the ability to prevent others from directing the use of, and receiving the benef t from, a good or service.

As per IFRS 15, the performance obligations are deemed to be satisfied as foIIows

Type of sale L Recognition
Product and services sales ~* On delivery and when acceptance by the customer. has occurred.
. Project installation o Over time on a cost-to—cost method, i.e. based on the proportion of

contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the
estimated total contract costs. The company considers that the input
method is an appropriate measure of the progress towards complete
satisfaction of these performance obligations.

Service contracts - C As and when performance obllgatlons are satisfied using cost to cost
' measure of progress.

Royalty income : " Inthe period that the use of the intellectual property occurs based on the
underlymg sales.

Project installation contracts

The company determines at contract mceptlon that the control of a promlsed good or service is transferred over
time, when any of the following conditions are satisfied:

e+ The customer is receiving and consuming the benefits of the companys performance as the company
performs;

* The company creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls»as it is created or enhanced;

« The company's performance does not create an asset with alternative use and the company has a right to
payment for performance completed to date. .

The company becomes entitled to invoice customers for contracts based on achieving a series of
performance-related milestones. The company will previously have recognised a contract asset for any work
- performed. Any amount previously recognised as a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point
at which it is invoiced to the customer. If the milestone payment exceeds the revenue recognised to date under
the cost-to-cost method, then the company recognlses a contract liability for the difference.

The company s contracts are typically negotlated for the construction of a single asset or a group of assets that
are closely interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design, technology and function. In .certain
circumstances, the measurement: criteria_are applied to the separately identifiable components of a single
contract or to a group of contracts’ together in order to reflect the substance of a contract or a group of contracts.

Owing to the nature of the contracts entered into by the company, it assumes S|gnrf‘cant integration of goods and
services in order to affect the delivery of the combined item the customer contracts for and hence consnders the
contracted services under such contracts as a single performance obligation.

Assets covéred by a single contract are treated separately when:
* separate proposalé have been submitted for each asset;
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: : Registration number: 00264047

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
(contmued)

2. Accounting policies (continued)

». each asset has been subject to separate negotiation and the contractor and customer have been able to
accept or reject that part of the contract relating to each asset;

- = the costs and revenues of each asset can be identified. '
A group of contracts are treated as a single construction contract when: ‘
» the group of contracts is negotiated with a single commercial objective;

» the consideration paid for one contract is .dependent on the price or performance of another contract or
goods; or

+ services promised are a single performance obligation.

i

Volume rebates

The company provides retrospective volume rebates to certain customers once the quantity of products
purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts
- payable by the customer. To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the company
applies the most likely amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value
method for contracts with more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of
variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The
company then applies the requirements on constralnlng estrmates of variable consideration and recognises a
refund liability for the expected future rebates.

Warranty obliga'tions

The company typically provides warranties for general repairs of defects that existed at the time .of sale, as -
required by law. These assurance-type warranties are accounted for under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

The service-type warranties are sold either separately or bundled together with the sale of goods. Contracts for

. bundled sales of goods and a service-type warranty comprise two performance obligations because the promises
to transfer the good and to provide the service-type warranty are capable of being distinct. Using the relative

stand-alone selling price method, a portion of the transaction price is allocated to the service-type warranty and

recognised as a contract liability. Revenue is recognised over the penod in which the service-type warranty is

provided based on the time elapsed.

Contract assets and receivables B

" A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the

company performs by transferring goods or services to' a customer before the customer pays consideration or -

before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

A recelvable represents the company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assets in financial instruments — initial recognltron and subsequent measurement. )

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the company has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays -
consideration before the company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised
when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the company performs under the contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
(contlnued)

2

2 Accounting policies (continued)

Government grants :

Government grants are recognised when it is reasonable to expect that the grants will be received and that all

. related conditions will be met, usually on submission of a valid claim for payment. Government grants in respect

of capital expenditure are credited to a deferred income account and are released as income by equal annual

amounts over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets. Grants of a revenue nature are credlted to income
- so as to match them with the expenditure to which they relate. :

Grants for specific:expenses such as furlbugh costs are credited to income in profit and loss account in the same
period as the relevant expense.

Leases - as lessee
Definition . -

The company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. The company
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all leasing arrangements, except for
short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets (less
than £5,000). For these leases, the company recognises the |ease payments as an operating expense on a
stralght-llne basis over the term of the lease. /

Lease liability - Initial recogmt/on and measurement

The lease liability is |n|t|ally measured at the present value of the lease payments, excluding payments made at.
or before the commencement date, discounted using the rate implicit in the lease. If thls rate cannot be readily
determined, the company uses its |ncremental borrowing rate. .

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
+ . fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed payments); and

"« payments of penalties: for terminating the lease, if the lease term" reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease. .

Variable lease payments are not included in the determination of the lease |labl|lty and are charged to the prof' it
- and loss in the period that they arise (applicable for car lease rentals) .

Lease liability - Subsequent measurement
The lease liability is subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The lease liability is. remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset, whenever:

+ . the lease term has changed in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised Iease
payments using a revised discount rate; and

« alease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in whlch case
the lease ||ab|I|ty is remeasured by discounting the revised lease paymerits using a revised discount rate.

nght-of-use assets -
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the initial amount of the Iease I|ab|I|ty adjusted for:

. lease payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received;
* any initial direct costs; and ' ’

+ an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the -terms. and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
(contlnued) o

2. Accounting policies (continued)

The company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date to -
the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the Iease term. The company also -
assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

Research and development :
All costs associated with research and development are ‘written off to the profit and loss account in the year of
expenditure, unless the costs meet the recognition criteria under IAS 38 to be capitalised. R&D expenditure credit
reclaimable from HM Revenue and Customs in respect of those costs is recognised when the actual claim is
submitted to revenue authorities. The amount claimed reduces the research and development costs in the profit
and loss account in the year of claim. .

Interest receivable

Interest receivable is recognised as |nterest accrues usmg the effective interest method. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
lnstrument to its net carrying amount.

Interest payable

Interest payable is recognised using the effectlve interest rate method. In calculating mterest payable the
effective interest rate is applied to the amortised cost of the liability.

Foreign currency translatlon :

The company s financial statements are presented in Sterling, which is also the company s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the entity’s functional currency by applying the spot
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of hlstoncal cost in a foreign currency are translated usmg the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Taxation

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred taxes. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
. that a change attributable to an item of income or expense recognised as other comprehensuve income is also
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of taxrates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable
income. .

Deferred income tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements and on unused tax losses or tax credits in the
company. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
- enacted by the reporting date.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are reviewed at éach reporting date and a valuation allowance is set
up against deferred tax assets so that the net carrying amount equals the highest amount that is more likely than
not to be recovered based on current or future taxable profit.

Income tax is charged or credited to other comprehensive income if it relates to items that are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income. Similarly, income tax is charged or credited directly to equity if it relates
to items that are credited or charged directly to equnty Otherwise income tax is recognised in the profit and loss
account.
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" Notes to the Finaneial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

2 Accouniing policies (continued)

Tangible assets : :

Tangible assets are stated at hlstorlcal purchase cost less accumulated-depreciation. Depreciation is calculated
using the straight-line method at rates calculated to write down the cost to the estimated residual value over the
estimate useful life. Cost comprlses purchase costs together with any incidental expenses of acquisition.
Depreclatlon )
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction
over their estimated useful lives, as per the table below. The assets’ estimated useful lives, deprecnatlon rates
and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Asset class o . ’ Depreciation method and rate
Land and buildings ' : . o " 13% straight line
Piant and equipment o ) 6 - 33% straight line
Fixtures and fittings ' o . 7 - 25% straight line

Depreciation is not provided on constructlon in progress unt|| the asset is completed.
Land is not depremated

-The assets’ estimated useful lives, depreciation rates and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if
‘appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. .

Impairment of non-financial assets
The company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an mdlcatlon that an asset may be impaired. If
any such indication exists; or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the company makes an
estimate of the asset's recoverable amount in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss. An asset's

. recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value

in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses on continuing operations are recognised in the profit and loss account in those expense categories’

consistent W|th the function of the impaired asset. . .

For assets where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asseét or cash generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, not to exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had ‘no impairment losses been recognised for the asset or cash
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of impairment loss is recognised immediately in the profit and loss
account. The company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exists.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that glves rise to a fi nanmal asset in one entity and a financial Ilab|I|ty or
equity instrument in another entity. :

Initial recognition

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus,.in the case of financial assets not recorded at falr
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured at their entirety at amortlsed cost.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognltlon as ﬁnanc|al ||ab|I|t|es at falr value through profit or loss, or
financial liabilities at amortised cost as appropriate. . .
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Financial assets are classified into one of the following three categories: ,

Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Notes to the Fmanmal Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 |

" (continued)

'

2 Accounting polucnee (continued)

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of financial liabilities at amortised cost, .
net of directly attnbutable transaction costs.

Currently, the company ‘holds f nancial liabilities measured at amortised cost which comprises of loans and

borrowings. - \

Classit” cation and measurement
Financial instruments are classified at inception into one of the following .categories, which then . determlne the
subsequent measurement methodology

» financial assets at amortised cost;

« financial assets at fair value through other comprehensuve income (FVTOCI); or
+ financial assets at fair value.through the profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial liabilities are classified into one of the following two categories:

« financial liabilities at amortised cost; or

« financial liabilities at fair value throdgh the profit or loss (FVTPL). .

The classification and th'e basis for measurement are subject to the company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, as detailed below:

Financial assets at amortised cost g
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and i is not designated
as at FVTPL:

+ the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

+ the c¢ontractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely -
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

If either of the above two criteria is not met, the fi nancnal assets are classifi ed and measured at fair value through
the profit or loss (FVTPL).

" If a financial asset meets the amortised cost criteria, the company may choose todesignate the financial asset at

FVTPL. Such an election is irrevocable and applicable onIy if the FVTPL classification significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition lncon5|stency

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
After initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortlsed cost are measured at amortised cost usmg the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss account when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as interest payable in the profit and loss account.
Derecognition

Financial afsets '

A financial ‘asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is .
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the company’s balance sheet) when:

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or’

» ‘ : Page 35 : -



Novar Systems Limited
Registration. number: 00264047

Notes to the Fmanclal Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

2 Accountlng policies (continued)

- » The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obllgatlon to .
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
‘and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the .
company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has,
transferred control of the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, the company evaluates whether the cash flows of the
modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the original financial asset are deemed to expire. In this case the original financial asset is
derecognised and a new financial asset is recognised at either amortised cost or fair value.

If the cash flows are not substantially different, then the modification does not result in derecognition of the
financial asset. In this case, the company recalculates the gross carrying amount of the financial asset and
recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross carrying amount as a modification gain or loss in the
statement of income. Modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit and loss account.

Impairment of financial assets
Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

In accordance with IFRS 9, the company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for the measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortlsed coste.g., mvestments loans and bank
balance.

ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the company in

.accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the company expects to receive, discounted at-the
original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights. When estimating the
cash flows, the company is required to consider:

« All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extensuon) over the expected life of the
assets.

+ Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms
[ 4
Stocks -
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost .incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition, and
net realisable value. Provisions for obsolete and slow-moving stocks are made where appropriate.

The cost of raw matenals consumables and goods for resale is the purchase cost on a first-in, first-out basis.
The cost of work in progress and finished goods is the cost of direct materials and labour plus attrlbutable
overheads based on a normal level of activity. :

Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less . any further costs expected to be mcurred to
completlon and disposal. . .

Def‘ ned contribution pension obllgatlon

Defined contribution plans are externally funded, with the assets of the plan held separately from those of the
company in separate trustee administered funds. Contributions to such plans are charged to the profit and loss
account as they become payable.
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2 Accouinting policies (continued)

Defined benefit pension obligation

As described in note 22, the company participates in a defined benefit pension scheme for the benefit of certain
of its employees, the assets of which are held separately from those of the company in independently
administered funds. The rates of contribution are determined by independent professionally qualified a’ctuanes

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined separately for each plan using the
projected unit credit method, which attributes entitiement to benefits to the current period (to determine current
service cost) and to the current and prior periods (to determine the present value of defined benefit obligation)
and is based 'on actuarial advice. Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss. When a settlement
(eliminating all obligations for benefits already accrued) or a curtailment (reducing future obligations as a result of
a material reduction .in the scheme membership or a reduction in future entitiement) occurs, the obligation and
related plan assets are remeasured using current actuarial assumptions and the resultant gain or loss recognlsed
in the profit and loss account during the period in which the settlement or curtailment occurs.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset, both as
determined at the start of the-annual reporting period, taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit
liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments. The net interest is recognlsed in profit
or loss as interest receivable or payable. A\

' Remeasurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on the net assets (excludlng amounts
_included in net interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. ‘

The defined benefit pension asset or liability in the balance sheet comprises the total for each plan of the present
value of the defined benefit obligation (using a discount rate based on high quality corporate bonds), less the fair
value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly. Fair value is based on market price
information and in the case of quoted securities.is the publlshed bid price. The value of a .net pension benefit
asset is restricted to the present value of any amount the company expects to recover by way of refunds from the
plan or reductions in the future contributions. :

Provisions
The company recognises a provision when it has present obligation, either Iegal or constructive, that can be
- reliably measured and it is probable that the transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle that obligation.

Provisions are based on the best estimate of exp.enditqre required to settle the obligation.

The company has obligations in respect of redundancy relating principally to restructuring of its operations. The
amount of the provision is based on the best estlmate of the cost of severance pay for notified individuals at the
balance sheet date.

Share based payments

The company’s employees participate in share option plans operated by Honeywell International Inc., the ultimate
parent company. All share-based payments are equity-settled and are measured at fair value at the date of grant.
The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line-basis over the vesting period, based on
the companys estimate of the number of options that will eventually vest. At each balance sheet date, the
company reviews its estimate of the number of options that are expected to vest. .

In accordance with IFRS 2, the charge arising for share-based payments is recognised in the profit and ioss
account of the company that employs those to whom share-based awards are granted The credit entry is
reported directly to retained earnings reserves as a capital contribution.

The company accrues for employers' national insurance contributions payable on share-based payments at the
applicable contribution rate.
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3 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the directors are required
to make judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts
recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical.
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates. -

. Iy ..

The estimates and underlying assumptions are revieWed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements

. There are no Judgements that have a significant effect on amounts recogmsed in the fi nanC|aI statements.

Estimates and assumptions _
The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the
control of the company Such changes are reflected in the assumptlons when they occur.

Impairment of financial assets’

The company estimates the expected credit loss in relation to its financial assets considering the nature of
business, past history and other mltlgatlng factors. The company reviews this policy -annually, if required.
Accordingly, on application of ECL, the company concluded that there was no credit risk involved.

In respect of other financial assets which primarily comprise of amounts owed from group undertakings, a letter of
guarantee has been provided by the ultimate parent company, Honeywell International Inc. indicating that support
will be given in order to settle these amounts should it be necessary. Accordingly, the company has not
recognised a provusuon for expected credit loss.

Estimates used for revenue recogm_tuon

Pro/ect installations

The use of the cost-to-cost method requires the company to estimate the proportion of costs |ncurred to the total
estimated costs to complete the contract. .

The percentage of completion and the revenue to recognise are determined on the basis of a large number of
estimates. Consequently, the company has implemented an internal financial budgeting and reporting system. In
particular, the company reviews each quarter the estimates of contract revenue and contract costs as the
contract progress. . .

Estimates used for provisions

Judgement is involved in determining whether a present obligation exnsts and in estlmatmg the probability, timing
and amount of any outflows. Professaonal expert adwce is taken where required through internal or external
subject matter experts. .

Judgements are also required where there is a high degree of uncertainty associated with determining whether a
present obligation exists, and estimating the probability and amount of any outflows that may arise. .

The redundancy provision covers a number of employees and is calculated on an individual basis to take account
of variables such as length of service. As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of the redundancy provision
was £131 ,000 (2020: £340,000).
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3 Judgements and key sources of estimatioh uncertainty (continued) -

Provisions for warranty costs are recogr\ised when the product is sold to the customer. Initial recogpnition is based
on historical experiences. To calculate the provision for warranty cost, management take all returns/credit in
relation to the products for the last 12 months and considers the cost of sales for those credits for the warranty
period. The estimate of warranty costs is revised annually. The carrymg amount of the warranty prowswn as at
31 December 2021 was £237,000 (2020 £337,000).

Estimates used for DB pensron scheme -

The cost of defined benefit pensions plans and other post-employment medical benefits is determined using
actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due-to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying
assumptions and the long-term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainty. In
determining the appropriate discount rate, the actuary considers the interest rates of corporate bonds in the
respective currency with at least AA rating, with extrapolated maturities corresponding to the expected duration of
the defined benefit obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality, and those having excessive
credit spreads are removed from the population of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the basis that
they do not represent high quality bonds. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the
specific country. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for
the respective country. Management works closely with the actuary to agree to these assumptions. The value of
a net pension benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any amount the company expects tqQ recover by
way of refunds from the plan or reductions in the future contributions. Further details are given in note 22.- '

4 Turnover }
The analysis of the company's turnover for the year from continuing operatrons is as follows:

31 December 31 December

v 2021 2020

. £000 £000.

Sale of goods ° 3 . 65,199 59,076

Rendering of services ' . - 14,051 . 14,356

" Royalty income : : , 3,628 3,800

. Project installation , 576 525
" ' 83,454 77,757 |

The analysis of the company's turnover for the year by geographical market is as follows: .

2021 2020
. ' ) ; . £000 - _£000
United Kingdom -~ o ‘ . 63,476 55,643
Rest of Europe ’ : - 14,095 - - 14,646
Rest of the world : 5,883 "~ 7,468
‘ ' 83,454 : 77,757

The timing of the company's revenue recognition for the year is as follows:
' 2021 2020

' ' , A . - £000 £000

Over time o » A ' -18,255 . 18,681
Point of time ‘ : o 65,199 : 59,076

83,454 77,757
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- (continued)

\

4 Turnover (continhed) '

Construction contracts .

Contract revenue recognised in period

Contract costs incurred
Recognised profits less recognised losses

Contfa_ct costs incurred and recognised profits (less recognised Iossés)
. Less: progress billings

Amounts due to customers -

Amounts due from customers included within debtors
.Amounts due to customers included within creditors

. Disclosures in respect of contracts with customers

Note . °

' Gross trade receivables
Provision for expected credit loss
Trade receivables ’ . I 1.7
Contract assets . ' . 17
Contract liabilities ' is

Revenue r'ecognised in the period from:

Revenue from contracts. with customers

Impairment losses on receivables or contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at
the beginning of the year

5 Government grant income

Government grants
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2021 2020
£000 £000
576 525
36,722 36,456
10,181 9,870
46,903 46,326

(46,777) . (46,200)
126 126
157 142

- (16)

31 December

31 December

' 2021 . - 2020
£000 £000
11,731 11,440
(103) (99)
11,628 11,341
1,067 825
(681)

31 December

(846)

31 December

2021 2020
£000 ~ £000
83,454 77,757
74 (129)

846 -
2021 2020
£000 £000

- 53

- 53
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;(conﬂnued) ‘ o ,

5° Government grant income {continued)

During the year, the company recognised a govemment grant of £nil (2020: £53,000) under the Coronavirus Job
Retention Scheme (JRS). The grant is given to UK employers to cover all or part of the wages and salary costs of
employees on temporary leave (furlough) due to the COVID-19 pandemic. .

6 Gam on sale of intangible assets ‘
' <2021 2020

‘ . . ) £000 . £000
Gain on sale of intangible assets . : : 199,515 Do -
" 199,515 -

As part of an inter-group restructuring plan, it has been decided by the Honeywell group companies to transfer its
Intellectual Property (IP) rights amongst the group entities, thus reducing the manufacturing footprint and
~ consolidating production plants. Based on this initiative and following the IP transfer in December 2021, the

production -line- of Novar Systems Limited was outsourced to Honeywell Safety Romania, with production - .

" activities in the UK having completely ceased by April 2022. The company's IP transfer resulted in a gam of
£199,515,000.

7 Operating profit
Arnved at after chargmg/(credltlng)

2021 2020

: £000 , £000

.\ Depreciation expense - T - o 47 55

Depreciation on right-of-use assets ’ _— 622 ) 407

Research and development cost . : 3,135 : 612
Foreign exchange gains . (36) (141)

Reorganisation and redundancy costs ' ‘ : . 1,159 : 1 ,181
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equnpment . B . - ' (11)

8 Auditors' remuneration

Fees payable to the auditor, Deloitte'LLP, amounted to £17, 800 (2020: £17 ,800) for the audit of the financial
statements. This cost was incurred by Honeywell Control Systems Limited, a fellow UK subsudiary of Honeywell
International Inc., and it is not recharged to the company. . . . . -

There”are no non-audit services fees payable to the auditor (2020: £nil).
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. 9 Staff costs

The aggregate payroll costs (including directors' remuneration) were as follows:

2021 2020
) . £000 £000
Wages-and salaries B 9,135 9,289
Social security costs . : 1,090 . 1,191
Pension costs, deﬁned contribution scheme ' ’ 1,167 - 1,245
Pension costs, defined benefit scheme (note 22) . ‘ C . - 39
Share-based payment expenses (note 25) 4 . 47 40
S 1143 - 11804

The average number of persons employed by the company (mcludlng dlrectors) during the year, analysed by
category was as follows: .

2021 2020
. . . No. . No.
Direct : . ' S 69 ' 89
Indirect ) " : - . 102 120
1T 209
10 Directors’ remuneration '
The directors' remuneration for the year was as follows:
’ Co . ‘ 2021 ‘ 2020
: T . £000 £000
Aggregate emoluments o 78 - : 68
Pension costs - defined contribution _ ‘ 16 15
94 : 83

During the year the number of directors who were receiving benefits and share incentives was as follows: _

2021 2020

: No. : " No.

Accruing benefits under defined benefit pension scheme’ L 1 1
In respei:t of the highest paid director: V

' ' ‘ 12021 2020

. . £000. _ £000

Remuneration : B 78 - ‘ 68

Company cbntributions to money purchase pension schemes - N 16 . T

3 .
- During the financial year the hlghest pald director did not (2020: dld not) exercise options over shares of '
" Honeywell International inc., the ultimate parent company.
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\

11 Interest receivable and similarincome -

. 2021 2020
. 4 . . ) £000 £000
Interest receivable from group undertakings : ' 856 . - 947
Pension interest . ) o : 2,182 B 2,596
' ' ’ 3,038 3,543
12 Interest payable and "simtlar expenses
' ' 2021 4 2020
. . £000 " . £000
Interest on preference shares : . A e 1,265 .- 1,265
Interest expense on leases ‘ _ A - , 37 ' 9
1,302 - 1,274
13 Tax on profit
Tax (credited)/charged in the profit and loss account: - oo ) .
' 2021 2020 .
£000 £000
Current taxation _
UK corporation tax A : o : 42,742 ‘ -
UK corporation tax adjustment to prior periods . : 1 -
42,743 -
Total current income tax ' ‘ : 42,743 -
Deferred taxation . . »
Arising from origination and reversal of temporary dlfferences 307 1,195
Arising from changes in tax rates and laws . : © 4,635 . .1,383
Arising from adjustment in respect of prior periods - 37
Total deferred taxation . ' - _ - 4,942 . 2,615
Tex expense in the profit end loss account - _' ' ’ 47,685 ' . 2,615
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13 Tax on profit (continued)'
Tax relating to items credited or charged to statement of comprehensive income:

2021 ) 2020 .
£000 £000
Current taxation . ‘

" Tax on items relating to components of other comprehensive income - : . -
Total current taxation ' ' - , - - -
Deferred taxation v
Remeasurements on defined benefit pension plans 18,728 . 7,133
Total deferred taxation - . ' ' ) - " 18,728 7,133

The tax on profit before tax for the year is the same as the standard rate of cbrporation tax in the UK of 19%
(2020: 19%). . :

The differences are reconciled below: .
2021 2020

. . £000 . £000
Profit before tax S : 224,960 25277
Corporation tax at standard rate o ' o 42,742 -4,804
Current tax from adjustment for prior periods o 1 a 37
Effect of income exempt from taxation - ' mn . (40)
Effect of expenses not deductible in determining taxable profit (tax Ioss) 314 251
Group relief surrendered : - '(3,820)
Deferred tax changes in tax rates or laws . ’ , 4,635 1,383
Total tax charge ' . o _ . 47,685 2,615

Factors affecting tax charge for the financial year

The Finance (No.2) Act 2015 reduced the main rate of UK corporatlon tax to 19%, effective from 1 April 2017. A
further reduction in the UK corporation tax rate to 17% was expected to come into effect from 1 April 2020 (as
enacted by Finance Act 2016 on 15 September 2016). However, legislation introduced in the Finance Act 2020
(enacted on 22 July 2020) repealed the reduction of the corporation tax, thereby maintaining the current rate of
19%. Deferred taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% (2020: 19%) which represents the future
corporatlon tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

The UK Budget 2021 announcements on 3 March 2021 included measures to support economic recovery as a
result of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. These included an increase to the UK’s main corporation tax rate to
25%. The Finance Act 2021 reading on 24 May 2021 substantively enacted the increase, and, therefore, is
considered effective at the balance sheet date for deferred tax re-measurement purposes. .
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\

(.
13 Tax on profit (continued)

\

Deferred tax . ' .
. Deferred tax assets and Ilabllltles

. 207 2020

£000 £000
Deferred tax asset .
~ Differences between capital allowances and depreciation = - : 564 - 502
Tax losses carried forward, ‘ _ . - . -
‘Other short-term timing differences . o - 104 67
Total deferred tax asset. 4 S - ' 668 : 569
Deferred tax liability ‘ S .7 .

- Deferred tax provision on pension asset (note 21) ‘ . ) (54,346) (30,577)
Total deferred tax liability - ' ’ - (54,346) (30,577)
Net deferred tax liability s (53,678) (30,008) -

Excluding . .

, : : pension Pension Total
! ‘ : . £000 £000 £000

'Movements in deferred tax _ . ' _ ‘
At 1 January 2021 ' : ' 569 . (30,577) (30,008)
Charge to the profit and loss account o . e 99 A (5,041) (4,942)
Charge to statement of comprehensive income - (18,728) (18,728)
" At 31 December 2021 668 - (54,346) . (53,678)

The deferred tax asset is recognised because it is more likely than not that there quI be suff cient taxable proﬁts
in the future to recover the assets. .
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14 Tangible assets

Co;t or valuation
At 1 January 2021
Additions
Disposals

At:31 December 2021

Depreciation

At'1 January 2021
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposal

At 31 December 2021
Carrying amodnt

At 31 December 2021
At 31 December 2020

15 "RigAht-of-use assets

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2021
Additiqns

At 31 December 2021

Depreciation
At 1 January 2021
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2021
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

Land and

Plant and

Fixtures Construction

buildings equipment and fittings in progress . Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
‘94, 787 686 - 1,567
- - 1,246 1,246
(8) (413) . (277) -7 7. (698)
: 86 374 409 1,246 © 2,115
91 765 626 - 1482
3 19 24 : 46
(8) (413) (277) - (698)
86 371 373 .- 830
- 3 36 1,246 1,285

3 22 60 - - . 85

' Land and

buildings

- £000

1,214

4,448

5,662

. 814

622

"1,436

4,226

400
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15 Right-of-use assets (continued)

During the year, the company entered into a new lease agreement for an office building in Leicester, UK, which

commenced on 14 July 2021 with a lease term of 10 years.

Under the new lease agreement, the annual rent is £545,280, which is not payable until 14 January 2023

foIIowmg an_ 18 month rent free period.

The previous lease ended in November 2021 at the end of its 10 year term.
<

- 16 ‘Stocks ' ' : ;

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

‘ ~£000 £000

Raw materials and consumables _ Co- 36
Finished goods ' o B : ‘ . 2,375 1,162
* 2,375 1,198

The cost of stocks recogmsed as an expense in the year amounted to £37,217,000 (2020: £33,950,000). This is

included within cost of sales. ‘

The:cost of stocks written down recognised as an expense in'the year amounted to £36,000 (2020: £4,000).

QA

17 Debtors

31 December 31 December
2021 2020
£000- £000

Amounts falling due within one year -
Trade debtors ' A .. 11628 “11,341
Amounts owed by group undertakings : .. 84,692 81,832
Prepayments , 111 - 246
~Other debtors - - 172
Contract asset ' . . ’ - 1,067 ‘825
' ; ' 97,498 94,416

The company sold with recourse trade debtors with a carrying value of £5,560,000 (20205 £3,462,000) to a bank

for cash proceeds. These trade debtors have not been derecognised from the balance sheet because the - -

company retains an obligation to pay amounts in event of default of the original asset. Theé amount received on
transfer has been recognised as a secured bank loan (note 18). The arrangement with the bank is such that the
customers remit cash directly to the company and the company transfers the collected amounts to the bank. The
receivables are considered to be held with a held-to-collect  business model consistent wnth the company's

continuing recognition of receuvables

The carrying amount of associated liability is £5,560,000 (2020: £3,462,000).

Page 47



Novar Systems Limited
Registration number: 00264047

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

(continued)

- 17 . Debtors (continued)

Amounts owed by group undertakings include the foIIownng interest-bearing loans and other borrownngs all other

amounts are interest free

Receivable '
On demand

31 December

Interest terms
UK Base rate plus 1%

2021
£000
78,392

31 December
2020

" £000

77,536

An |mpa|rment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit

losses.

Amounts due:

Not due )

" Within 30 days
30 - 60 days
61-90 days
After 90 days

Amounts due:

Not due
‘Within 30 days
30 - 60 days
61-90days .
After 90 days

" 31 December 2021

Gross carrying

Expected

Page 48 .

amount at risk Expected
- of default credit loss rate credit loss
£000 % £000
9,643 - 0.11% 1
719 ' 0.49% 3
566 1.42% 8
241 327% ’ 8
562 12.89% 73
11,731 103

31 December 2020
‘Gross carrying '

amount at risk Expected Expected
.of default credit loss rate credit loss
£000 % £000
8,895 . 0.14% 12
694 0.24% 2
668 1.07% 7
347 1.57% 5
836 8.72% 73
11,440 ' 99
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18 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

31 December 31 December

2021 2020

. £000 ’ £000

Trade creditors ' ‘ 3,851 3,084
Accrued expenses : . 2,231 1 ;1 64
Amounts due to group, undertaklngs . ' - 2,795 ' 3,817
Social security and other taxes ' ' o - 2,066 2,178
Corporation tax liability B . ' 42,559 ‘ -
Secured borrowings : ' , 5560 3,462
* Current portion of long term lease liabilities C _ .- - 245
Contract liabilities , S . 681 846
Accrued preference dividends : ) ' 22,919 21,654
' 82,662 36,450

All amounts owed to group undertakings are payable on demand, unsecured and non-interest bearing.

Accrued preference dividends represent an annual dividend of £1,265,000 since 2003 on 7.5% cumulative
preference shares of £1 each. .

The secured borroWings are secured by trade debtors with a carrying value of £5,560,000 (2020: £3,’462,000),

.

19 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

: A 31 December 31 December
> ’ : : : 2021 : -2020
\ _ ’ £000 £000
. Non-current loans and boirowings :
Finance lease liabilities ' C ’ 4,480 -
Redeemable preference shares ' T 16,868 16,868
S ‘ 21,348 16,868

The holders of the redeemable cumulative preference shares have the right to be pald a fixed cumulative
preference dividend at the rate of 7.5% per annum payable annually in arrears.

4 The company can redeem all or part of the preference shares at any time together with arrears of dividends. In

the case of winding up the company, the holders of the preference shares are entitled to receive the face value of
the shares together with arrears of the dividends up to the date of winding up. :
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'20 Leases

Leases included in creditors )
31 December 31 December

2021 2020
- ' ' £000 £000
Current portion of long term lease liabilities - ‘ - " 245
Long term lease liabilities ” - 4,480 - -
4,480 . 245
Lease liabilities maturity analysis ,

The non-cancellable lease payments are due:
' 31 December 31 December
2021 ) 2020
. £000 £000
Within one year ) - 3 245
In two to five years : ] L - . 2,033 - -
In over five years . ' : .- 2,447 - -
‘ ‘ 4,480 ’ 245

The company's commerciel lease over its right-ef-use asset described in Note 16 expired in November 2021. A
" new lease was entered in July 2021 with a lease term of 10 years. There are no restrictions placed upon the
lessee by entering into these leases.

21 Provisions for Iiabilities '
Severance - Deferred tax

pay Warranties (note 12) .. Total

~ £000 £000 ~ £000 £000

At 1 January 2021 : ' 340 337 30,008 30,685

Charge to profit and loss account 131 " (44) 4,942 5,029
Charge to other comprehensive : ) .

income - - 18,728 118,728

Utilised during the year o (340) (56) i - e (396)

" At 31 December 2021 _ : 131 - 237 ] - 53,678 54,046

The company has obligations in respect of redundancy relating principally to restructuring of its operations. The
amount of the provision is based on the best estimate of the cost of severance pay for notified individuals at the
balance sheet date.

The company offers a limited warranty for product sales that generally provides customers with a three-year
warranty period against defects. The provision for warranty related costs represents management's best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the obligation. it is recorded at the time products are sold and is reviewed
and adjusted by management periodically to reflect actual and anticipated expenence There were no long-term
warranty obligations as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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22 Pension commitments

Defi ned benefit pension schemes : S
Honeywell UK Pension Scheme (HUKPS)

. The company is a participating employer in the Honeywell UK Pension Scheme ("HUKPS") which is a funded
defined-benefit plan based on salary. The scheme was closed for future accruals of benefits with effect from 30
June 2017 and all active members at this date became deferred members. Regular employer contributions to the

. plan by the company in 2021 are estimated to be £nil. Defined benefit obligations are based on a full valuation of

the scheme’s liabilities as at 31 March 2020, measured usmg the projected unit credit method and rolled forward

to the year—end date as at 31 December 2021.

Reconc:llat/on of scheme assets and I/abllltles to assets and liabilities recognised

" The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows:

Fair value of scheme assets
Present value of scheme liabilities

Defined benefit pension scheme surplus

Amounts recognised in the income statement

" Amounts recogriised in operating profit
Past service cost
- Administrative expenses paid

Recognised in arriving at operating profit

Amounts recognised in financé income or costs
Interest cost
Expected return on pension plan assets

Recognised in other finance cost

Total recognised in the income statement
' Amounts taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income
Liability (gains)/losses due to changes in eSSUmptions '

Liability losses/(gains) due to experience during the year.
Asset gains arising during the financial year .

Amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
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31 December

v

31 December

2021 2020
_£000 £000
678,732 659,688
(461,345) (498,754)
217,387 160,934
2021 2020
£000 £000
- 39
887 781
887 820
6,805 9,076
. (8,987) (11,672)
(2,182) (2,596)
(1,295) (1,776)
2021 2020
£000 £000
(26,724) 38,551
136 (12,661)
(28,570) (58,165)
(55,158) (32,275)

A
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Notes to the Fmanmal Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
(continued)

22 Pension commitments (continued)

Scheme assets
Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

too2021 2020
i £000 £000
Fair value at start of year Lo 659,688 591,457
Transfer between companies* ‘ N .- 11,221
Expected return on assets ' ' . 8,987 11,672
Actuarial gains on assets - : < . 26,724 58,165
Contributions by employer ‘ , S " 3,762
Actual administration expenses paid : ; ' (887) (781)
Net benefits paid out . ) (15,780) (15,808)
Fair value at end of year : o - 678,732 659,688

* In 2020, Honeywell Normalair Garrett (Holdings) Limited settled a section 75 debt as per the Pensions Act 1995
~and as a result is no longer a partuc:patlng employer in the HUKPS. The membershlp in the pension scheme has
been reallocated to other participating companies.

Analysis of assets .
The major categories of scheme assets are as follows: .
2021 2020

_ _ : % %

Cash ' 4 1

Equities (including venture capltal and alternative mvestments) ) ' 15 28

Bonds - - o ' 69 . . . 59

"Property : ‘ _ 3. 12

Assets held by insurance company - ) 9 -
' 100 100

cy

The pension scheme has not invested in any of the company's own financial mstruments orin propertles or other
assets used by the company.

Page 52



N ' - SR "~ Novar Systems Limited
' Registration number: 00264047

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021
- (continued) v

© 22 Pension commitments (continued)

Scheme liabilities ,
Changes in the present value of scheme liabilities are as follows: ) _ .
2021 . 2020

: . . ) ~ £000 ) £000
Present value at start of year : : 498,754 468,336
Transfer between companies* : ' T - ’ 8,585
Interest cost - ‘ 6,805 9,076
Past service cost and curtailments : » - - 39
Actuarial losses/(gains) on liabilities - financial assumptions’ ' (22,834) . 36,165
Actuarial losses/(gains) on liabilities - demographic assumptions (5,736) 2,386
Actuarial losses/(gains) on liabilities - expenence ' BT A (10,025)
Net benefits pald out : ) - : ) K (15,780) . (15,808)
Present value at end of year ‘ : 461,346 498,754 -

*In 2020; Honeywell Normalair Garrett (Holdings) Limited settled a section 75 debt as per the Pensions Act 1995
and as a result is no longer a participating employer in the HUKPS. The membership in the pension scheme has
been reallocated to other participating companies. '

Principal actuarial assumptions

The significant actuarial assumptions used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
statement of financial position date are as follows: -

2021 2020

. : v % Y%

Discount rate ) ' " 1.98 : 1.40
Inflation (RPI) . 3.09 .2.70
Inflation (CPI) ‘ S 2.59 . 220

. Pensions subject to limited price indexation to 5% 2.60 © 260
Pensions subject to limited price indexation to 2.5% . . ’ 215 12.00

" Other pensions and deferred pensions B ' : 2.59 L 2.20

Mortahty :

Mortality assumptions are based on standard mortality tables that allow for future mortallty improvements. These
tables assume that a member who retired in 2021 at age 65 will live on average for a further 22 2 years (2020:
22.4 years) after retirement if male or a further 24.6 years (2020: 24.1 years) if female.

Overall long-term rate of return
The company employs a. building block approach in determining the long-term rate of return on pension plan :
assets. Historical markets are studied and assets with a higher volatility are assumed to generate higher returns
consistent with widely accepted capital market principles. The overall expected rate of return on assets is then
derived by- aggregatlng the expected rate of return for each asset class over the actual asset aIIocatlon for the
plan at the year end.

Page 53



Novar Systems Limited
- Registration number: 00264047

Notes to the Fmancral Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

(contmued)

23 Called-up share capital
- . N

Authorlsed caprtal
' 4,984,600 (2020: 4 ,984 600) ordinary shares of £1 each
15,400 (2020: 15,400) non-cumulative preference shares of £1 each

-

Allotted, called-up and fully paid

15,400 (2020: 15,400) non-cumulative preference shares of £1 each .

11,540 (2020: 11,540) ordlnary shares of £1 each

Total called-up share capital

24 Share premium

Balance at 1 January and 31 December
Premium arising on issue of equity shares

25 Share-based payments

Restricted stock units

* Scheme details and movements

31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£000 £000
4,985 4,985
15 15
'5,000

5,000

‘31 December

31 December

2021 2020
£000 - £000
15 15

12 12

27 27
2021 " 2020
£000 £000
2,990 2,990
' 2,990

2,990

The Honeywell Stock Incentive Plan includes restricted stock units (RSUs) that entitle the holder to receive one
share of common stock for each unit when the- units vest. RSUs are issued to certain key employees at fair
market value at the date of grant as remuneration. RSUs typically vest after three years and are payable in

common stock of Honeywell International Inc. upon vesting.

The movements in the number of share optlons during the year were as follows:

Outstanding, start of period
Granted during the period

31 December

Forfeited during the period
Exercised during the period'
Outstanding, end of period
Exercisable, end of period

31 December

' 2021 2020
"Number Number
957 1,070

" - 306
(564) (419)

(393) -

- 957

- 957
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25 Share-based payments (continued)

The movements in the weughted .average exercise price of share options during | the year were as follows:

. 31 December 31 December

2021 ~ 2020

o | o | £ £
Outstanding, start of period - o _ 116.97 11424 .

Granted during the period ' ' - 115.78

_Forfeited during the period ' . 122.44 109.13

Exercised during the period' - - ’ ' 109.13
Exercisable, end of period ‘ . B - 116.97

"The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options was £109.13 (2020: £Nil).

Charge arising from share-based payments .
The total charge, before deferred tax was £47,000 _(2020: £40,000).

26 Contmgentllabllltles

The company, with other Honeywell group companles in the UK, has prowded a bank guarantee under a
composite ‘accounting agreement. Under this agreement, bank interest is calculated on the net group position
after setting off positive and overdrawn cash balances. The maximum contingent liability under this agreement is -
the total of overdrawn -balances held by group companies, amounting to £792,016,000 (2020: £494,085,000).
Positive cash balances held by the group exceeded overdrawn balances in 2021 and 2020.

27 Events after the balance sheet date

- Following the sale of the Intellectual Property in December 2021, the company signed a Limited Risk Dlstnbutuon
Agreement on 28 January 2022 with Honeywell Products & Solutions Sarl. Novar Systems now acts as a
Distributor for Honeywell Products & Solutions Sarl. The board of directors also decided to transfer inventory
ownershlp to the new IP owner. This transfer was completed on 29 Apnl 2022.
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